
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, March 16, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Assistant Mayor Linda Teeters 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 2, 2020. (CCD) 

2. Adopt a Resolution making appointments to the Public Facility Board.  Public Works Director 

Tyler Richards, Planning Secretary Kay Smart and Media Relations Manager Eric Ethridge. 

(CCD) 

REGULAR 

3. Consider the following action concerning an amendment to the FY2020 Budget:  

Conduct a Public Hearing to allow citizen input regarding amending the FY2020 Budget. 

Adopt a Resolution amending the FY2020 Budget (Resolution No. 2019-45) and the Public 

Works Budget to include the expense and grant revenue for U of A Way Road Improvements. 

(PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

4. Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private club 

application by Joe Leslie Gay, as applicant of behalf of Crossties of Texarkana, Inc. (CCD) 

Attorney Jake Potter 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the Board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

Board. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, April 6, 2020 

ADJOURN 

 

 



 

2020 City Calendar 

 

YMAR Warriors for Christ Crusade - Friday & Saturday, March 27-28, 2020 

Blues in the Night - Friday, April 24, 2020 

Juneteenth Celebration - Saturday, June 27, 2020 

2nd Annual Party in Pink - Thursday, October 15, 2020 

Texarkana Race for the Cure - Saturday, October 17, 2020 

  



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 2, 2020. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/a 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, March 02, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order.  

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Assistant Mayor Linda Teeters, Ward 2 Director 

Laney J. Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 

Director Barbara S. Miner, and Ward 6 Director Terri Peavy.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, City 

Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Terri Peavy 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) 

Mayor Brown presented an award and pin to Tammy Cowdrey for 20 years of service with the 

Texarkana Water Utilities and Angela Hogan for 25 years of service with the District Court.   

Mayor Brown also acknowledged Shawn Maxey for 5 years of service with the Public Works 

Department and Patrick Allen for 10 years of service with the Fire Department.   

CONSENT 

Director Harris requested the following item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion: 

5. Adopt a Resolution to accept the 2019 Audit Engagement Letter prepared by the accounting 

firm BKD, LLP. (FIN) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director 

Brewer. 

The motion carried unanimously, and Mayor Brown declared the Consent Agenda approved.  The 

items approved were: 

2.    Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting February 18, 2020. (CCD) 

3. Resolution No. 2020-7 making staff appointments to the Personnel Policy Committee: TAPD 

Finance Officer Dara Cornett, Assistant Public Works Director Tracie Lee and Deputy Clerk 

Jenny Narens. (CCD) 

4. Resolution No. 2020-8 authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 



 

from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) 

REGULAR 

5. Resolution No. 2020-9 accept the 2019 Audit Engagement Letter prepared by the accounting 

firm BKD, LLP. (FIN) 

Director Harris said his concern was to save the taxpayers money.  He said he called the Legislative 

in Little Rock, Arkansas, and they did the county and school district audit.   

Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson said she had spoken with the Legislative Audit and they 

had a significant backlog of two to three years.  She said the state audit did a cash based audit not 

a full accrual audit and they would not write the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  

Ms. Henderson said the city was required to have a (CAFR) for grant and bond issues.  She said if 

they went with the state audit, they would still need to outsource several parts of the audit to have 

it completed.        

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Peavy, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Miner and Director Peavy 

Voting Nay: Director Harris. 

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted 6-1.  

 

6. Consider the following action concerning an amendment to the FY2020 Budget:  

Conduct a Public Hearing to allow citizen input regarding amending the FY2020 Budget. 

Mayor Brown opened the Public Hearing.   

Public Works Director Tyler Richards said both projects were budgeted last fall, and he had been 

trying to complete them but could not due to weather.  He said the projects needed to be relocated 

into this year’s budget.  Public Works Director Tyler Richards said the Ermer Dansby Pondexter 

(EDP) Sports Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms came out of Public Works Fund Balance and 

the Palomino Drive Drainage Improvements came from the Stormwater Reserve Fund.     

After some discussion Mayor Brown closed the Public Hearing.  

Resolution No. 2020-10 amending the FY2020 Budget (Resolution No. 2019-45) and the Public 

Works Budget to include the expense for Palomino Drive Drainage Improvements and Ermer 

Dansby Pondexter (EDP) Sports Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms. (PWD)  

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Miner and Director Peavy 

Voting Present: Director Harris. 

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted 6-1. 

 



 

7. Ordinance No. 2-2020 providing for the vacation and abandonment of an undeveloped right-

of-way located as part of 1200 Mitchell Street, to the City of Texarkana, Arkansas; for 

declaring an emergency; and for other purposes. (PWD-Planning)  

City Planner Mary Beck said several months ago she was contacted by Thomas Looney and he 

wanted to know if he could use 10 feet of an undeveloped right-of-way behind his home to build 

a fence.  She told Mr. Looney to petition the City for abandonment of the right-of-way, but some 

of his neighbors on the west side did not want to participate.  Ms. Beck said the neighbor on the 

north side, Mr. Tefteller, wanted to abandon the eastern end of the right-of-way.  She said they had 

numerous conversations with the City Attorney to determine what they could abandon.  City 

Planner Mary Beck said the utilities asked for a 10 foot easement on either side in case they would 

need to do any work.  She said she did not see any future problems with this abandonment.   

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Harris, Seconded 

by Assistant Mayor Teeters.   

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to further suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

Motion to adopt the emergency clause made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director 

Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 



 

The motion carried 7-0.  The Mayor declared the emergency clause adopted. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

 Mike Malone with the Texarkana Chamber of Commerce invited the board to a meeting 

on March 13, 2020, at Williams Memorial Church from 8:30 am to 1:30 pm.  He said the 

group TEX 21, would be conducting the meeting about transportation projects.      

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, March 16, 2020 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The meeting adjourned at 6:36 PM 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making appointments to the Public Facility Board.  

Public Works Director Tyler Richards, Planning Secretary Kay Smart 

and Media Relations Manager Eric Ethridge. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appoint city staff to  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Appointing Public Works Director Tyler Richards for City Clerk 

Heather Soyars unexpired term 11/30/2018-2021, Planning Secretary 

Kay Smart for Personnel Administrator Melissa Edwards unexpired term 

11/30/2019-2022, and Media Relations Manager Eric Ethridge for 

Assistant Public Works Director Tracie Lee unexpired term 11/30/2019-

2022, to the Public Facilities Board. (CCD) 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Resolution 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appoint the following persons to the designated 

boards and commissions;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved:  

 

Board/Commission:   Appointee: 

Public Facilities Board   Kay Smart Planning Secretary for  

     Melissa Edwards Personnel Administrator  

      unexpired term 11/30/2019-2022 

Public Facilities Board   Eric Ethridge Media Relations Manager for  

      Tracie Lee Assistant Public Works Director  

      unexpired term 11/30/2019-2022 

Public Facilities Board  Tyler Richards Public Works Director for  

      Heather Soyars City Clerk  

     unexpired term 11/30/2018-2021 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Consider the following action concerning an amendment to the FY2020 Budget:  

A. Conduct a Public Hearing to allow citizen input regarding amending the 

FY2020 Budget. 

B. Adopt a Resolution amending the FY2020 Budget (Resolution No. 2019-

45) and the Public Works Budget to include the expense and grant revenue 

for U of A Way Road Improvements. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards  

AGENDA DATE: 03/16/2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution to Amend the FY2020 Budget and the Public Works 

Budget. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not need an 

emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: The planning figures for the FY2020 Public Works budget must be adjusted to include 

the expense and grant revenue for U of A Way Road Improvements.  This project is a 

2019 project that staff anticipated completing the end of 2019 unfortunately the weather 

prevented contractors from completing the improvements.  As the project was expected 

to be completed in 2019 the City’s 2020 budget did not allocate funding for the project. 

Public Works 2019 ending fund balance was $1,478,141.00. The 2019 budgeted fund 

balance was $801,392.00.  From that amount $676,749.00 was available to be reallocated 

to the 2020 budget.  On the March 3rd agenda the board approved reallocation of 

$373,577.00 to EDP Sports Complex.  After the March 3rd reallocation there is $303,172 

available in the fund balance to be reallocated.   

An additional $760,238.54 will be received in FY2020 from EDA in grant revenue for 

this project. 

Therefore the 2020 budget will need to be amended to include the expense and revenue 

for U of A Way as listed below. 

From Public Works Fund Balance: 

 $518,317.84   U of A Way Road Improvements – 201-143-54028-50501 

EDA Revenue: 

 $760,238.54   EDA Grant Revenue - 201-0-47103 



EXPENSE REQUIRED: $518,317.84  

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$7460,238.54 ($760,238.54 EDA Grant Revenue) 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Resolution 2019-45. 

 

 

  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the FY2020 Budget, and in particular the 

Public Works portion thereof, to account for revenue and expense associated with U of A 

Way Road Improvements; and    

WHEREAS, this project was originally scheduled for completion in 2019, but such 

did not occur due to weather; and  

WHEREAS, an Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant in the 

amount of $760,238.54 is anticipated for this project; and  

WHEREAS, there remains an additional $303,172.00 in the Public Works Fund 

Balance allocated, but not incurred, in 2019, (again, due to the weather issues); and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Public Works portion of the FY2020 

Budget to account for such grant revenue and make the necessary appropriations for the 

anticipated expense of U of A Way Road Improvements to be incurred in FY2020; and   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Public Works portion of the FY2020 Budget is amended 

to recognize (EDA) grant revenue of up to $760,238.54 and to appropriate $518,317.84 

from the Public Works general fund (recognizing the $303,172.00 noted above), all for 

purposes of U of A Way Road Improvements in FY2020.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 





1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application by Joe Leslie Gay, as applicant of 

behalf of Crossties of Texarkana, Inc. (CCD) Attorney Josh Potter 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the Board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: March 16, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk  

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Private Club License 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: An emergency clause is requested by the applicant.  The ordinance must 

be effective before submitting the application to the Alcohol Beverage 

Control Administration 

SUMMARY: Joe Leslie Gay is requesting prerequisite approval to continue the 

application process through the State. 

Pursuant to ACT 112 of 2017, all new private club applications must be 

submitted with an ordinance from the governing body of the county or 

municipality in which the private club wishes to be located, approving 

the application. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING THE REQUEST 

FOR PREREQUISITE MUNICIPAL APPROVAL 

OF A PRIVATE CLUB APPLICATION BY JOE 

LESLIE GRAY, AS APPLICANT, ON BEHALF OF 

CROSSTIES OF TEXARKANA, INC.; 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage Control Division (the “ABC”) in 

accordance therewith requiring prior municipal approval by ordinance as a prerequisite to 

submittal of certain applications to the (ABC) or its Director relating to private clubs, request has 

been made that this Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, approve the application 

of Joe Leslie Gray as applicant for Crossties of Texarkana, Inc.; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that:   

Section 1.  The request of Joe Leslie Gray on behalf of Crossties of Texarkana, Inc., for 

prerequisite municipal approval of an application for a private club at 324 E. Broad Street 

Texarkana, Arkansas, 71854 as required by Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and the Rules and 

Regulations of the (ABC) is hereby granted.  

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of 

any business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state 

or federal law, rule or regulation, now or hereafter adopted.  

Section 3.  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency 

is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval.   

 



PASSED AND APPROVED this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 

            

_____________________________ 

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 
 


	Top
	1. minutes
	03162020_ccd_minutes
	03022020_minutes

	2. 03162020_cm_resolution_appointments_public_facilty_board
	item_2_03162020_PFB
	item_2_03162020_Resolution_PFB

	3. Amendment to FY2020 Budget
	item_2_03162020_pwd_U of A
	item_2_03162020_Resolution_U of A_Amendment of the FY2020 Budget
	item_3_03162020_pwd_U of A_2019-45

	4. Crossties
	Crossties
	item_3_03162020_ccd_Crossties_Ordinance

	Bottom

